IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION II

Consolidated Nos. 45887-0-II, 45947-7-II, 45957-4-II

QUINAULT INDIAN NATION, FRIENDS OF GRAYS HARBOR, SIERRA CLUB, GRAYS HARBOR AUDUBON and CITIZENS FOR A CLEAN HARBOR, Petitioners.

v.

CITY OF HOQUIAM; STATE OF WASHINGTON, DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY; and WESTWAY TERMINAL COMPANY, LLC, Respondents,

and

IMPERIUM TERMINAL SERVICES, LLC, Respondent/Cross-Petitioner,

SHORELINES HEARINGS BOARD, Respondent.

JOINT OPENING BRIEF OF QUINAULT INDIAN NATION AND FRIENDS OF GRAYS HARBOR *et al.*

KRISTEN L. BOYLES
MATTHEW R. BACA
Earthjustice
705 Second Avenue, Suite 203
Seattle, WA 98104-1711
(206) 343-7340 | Phone
(206) 343-1526 | Fax

INTRODUCTION

For the last several decades, Washington has led the nation in enacting substantive statutes to protect its vibrant but fragile shorelines and ocean resources. In 1969, Governor Evans placed a moratorium on all tideland fill projects until the passage of the Shorelines Management Act ("SMA"). In 1971, Washington enacted the State Environmental Policy Act ("SEPA"), requiring comprehensive and public environmental review of government decisions. And in response to the 1989 Exxon Valdez oil spill in Alaska and the 1988 Nestucca oil spill outside Grays Harbor, the Washington Legislature enacted the 1989 Ocean Resources Management Act to provide review criteria for <u>all</u> activities in Washington's coastal ocean waters that could harm Washington's coast, thriving marine life, and the people that depend on them. RCW 43.143.030. As part of that same package, the Legislature also required a showing of financial responsibility for tankers transporting oil in Washington waters to ensure the ability to pay clean-up costs for a worst case scenario oil spill; two years later, the Legislature extended that requirement to onshore and offshore oil facilities. RCW 88.40.025. These statutes help form the backbone of a review and protection scheme that has kept Washington from having a devastating oil spill in its marine waters since the Nestucca disaster in the late 1980s.

Now, however, as the production of domestic and Canadian oil grows, Washington faces several proposals that would vastly increase the amount of crude oil stored along Washington's coast and transported through Washington's marine waters. The two crude oil shipping terminals at issue in this appeal, proposed by Westway Terminal Company and Imperium Terminal Services, would be responsible for a combined average of five crude oil ship/barge transits through Grays Harbor and Washington's coastal ocean waters each week. This parade of vessels each ship or barge carrying thousands of barrels of crude oil—would be loaded at the mouth of the fast-moving Chehalis River, navigate near the Grays Harbor National Wildlife Refuge, pass over Grays Harbor's difficult-to-navigate bar, and emerge in Washington's coastal ocean en route to destinations in the United States and abroad. The line of 260 oil-laden vessels per year out of the harbor, of course, would be mirrored by 260 inbound trips each year. This is precisely the type of ocean use that the Legislature intended the Ocean Resources Management Act ("ORMA") and the financial responsibility requirements to address.

These statutory requirements would ensure that the proposed crude-by-rail facilities are permitted in a way that minimizes impacts to

¹ A third proposed oil shipping terminal, US Development, would add to the harm faced by the Grays Harbor community, waters, and environment.

Washington's coastal waters and ocean uses, such as navigation and fishing, and ensures the project proponents have adequate financial resources to respond to a catastrophic oil spill. Contrary to the plain language of ORMA, its legislative history, and its implementing regulations, the Shorelines Hearings Board held that this unprecedented stream of vessel traffic and increased risk to Washington's ocean waters did not constitute a use of the ocean under ORMA. Instead, the Board limited ORMA to activities involving the extraction of oil and gas from Washington waters, an activity long-banned in the state, effectively rendering ORMA's strong protections meaningless even as oil vessel traffic and the accompanying risk of spills increase beyond any precedent.

With respect to oil spill clean-up, the Shorelines Hearings Board held that neither SEPA nor the SMA required project proponents to demonstrate financial responsibility to pay costs of a worst-case-scenario spill at the permitting phase. Instead, the Board held that compliance with the financial responsibility requirements was necessary when the companies submit a spill prevention plan. This ruling could allow permitting and construction of the proposed projects with no evidence of the basic financial wherewithal to pay for a crude oil spill in Washington's ocean waters.

Petitioners Quinault Indian Nation and Friends of Grays Harbor,

Grays Harbor Audubon Society, Sierra Club, and Citizens for a Clean Harbor (collectively "FOGH") respectfully ask the Court to give full effect to ORMA's protective plain language and purpose by correcting the Board's overly narrow statutory construction and ensuring that the crude shipping terminals receive the scrutiny intended by the Legislature. Similarly, Quinault and FOGH ask the Court to require evidence of financial responsibility for a reasonable worst-case oil spill at the permitting stage, before construction and operation of these terminals.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- Whether the Ocean Resources Management Act, RCW
 43.143, applies to Westway and Imperium's use of Washington's ocean resources.
 - 1a. Whether the Board erred in finding that the Ocean Resources Management Act does not apply to the Westway and Imperium crude oil shipping facility proposals. AR at 2417-20 (SHB Order at 39-42).
- Whether Westway and Imperium must demonstrate compliance with the financial responsibility statute, RCW 88.40.025, during the SEPA and SMA permitting process.
 - 2a. Whether the Board erred in finding that Westway and Imperium did not need to demonstrate compliance with

RCW 88.40.025 during the SEPA and SMA permitting process. AR at 2416-17 (SHB Order at 38-39).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A. Crude Oil Transportation in the Pacific Northwest

The Westway and Imperium shipping terminal proposals are part of a recent phenomenon of transporting crude oil by rail from North Dakota and Alberta, Canada to the East and West Coasts, where it is then transferred to boats and barges for delivery abroad or to refineries in the United States. Including the three proposals in Grays Harbor, there are currently eleven crude-by-rail proposals or operating terminals in the Pacific Northwest.² In 2008, 9,500 tank car loads of crude were transported by rail. That number swelled to over 400,000 car loads in 2013, for a total movement of approximately 280 million barrels of crude oil that year, an increase of over 4,000%. All indications are that rail shipments of crude oil, Bakken crude in particular, will continue to grow.³

² See Sightline Institute, *The Northwest's Pipeline on Rails* at 1 (May 2014) ("Sightline Report"), *available at* http://goo.gl/llJvto.

³ Congressional Research Service, *U.S. Rail Transportation of Crude Oil: Background & Issues for Congress* at 1 (Feb. 6, 2014); AAR, *Moving Crude Oil by Rail* at 1 (Dec. 2013); Testimony of Edward R. Hamberger, AAR President, Hearing on Enhancing Our Rail Safety: Current Challenges for Passenger and Freight Rail Before U.S. Senate Comm. on Commerce, Science and Transportation at 5 (Mar. 2014).

The steep increase in crude oil shipping by rail and vessel has been accompanied by an equally sharp rise in oil spills and explosions, demonstrating the inherent environmental and health risks in the patchwork rail-to-terminal-to-vessel system. On July 6, 2013, an oil train derailed and exploded in Lac-Megantic, Quebec, killing 47 people. After that disaster, in May 2013, five train cars derailed near Jansen, Saskatchewan, spilling over 18,000 gallons of crude oil. On March 27, 2013, another train derailment spilled close to 20,000 gallons of tar sands crude oil in Parkers Prairie, Minnesota. In November 2013, a 90-car oil train derailed in Alabama, causing flames to leap 300 feet into the air as the tanks exploded and smoldered for days.

Recent oil spills have not been confined to land. In February 2014, approximately 31,500 gallons of crude spilled into the Mississippi River after a tank barge collided with a towboat.⁸ Similarly, in April of this

⁴ See Scott Haggett, et al., Quebec rail disaster shines critical light on oil-by-rail boom, Reuters, July 7, 2013, available at http://goo.gl/18TUH.

⁵ See CP Railway reopens line, cleans up after oil spill, Reuters, May 22, 2013, available at http://goo.gl/SJq6B.

⁶ See Conrad Wilson, 20K gallons of crude spill in MN train wreck, Minnesota Public Radio, Mar. 27, 2013, available at http://goo.gl/UZ0Iw.

⁷ See Edward McAllister, *Train carrying crude oil derails, cars ablaze in Alabama*, Reuters, Nov. 8, 2013, *available at* http://goo.gl/K69rBf.

⁸ See Janet McConnaughey, Lower Mississippi River Back Open After Oil Spill, Associated Press, Feb. 24, 2014, available at http://goo.gl/8YDNua.

year, a train derailed and spilled into the James River near Lynchburg, Virginia, causing Lynchburg and Richmond to switch to backup water supplies. The leaking crude oil briefly ignited.⁹

B. The Westway and Imperium Crude Oil Shipment Terminal Proposals

The Westway and Imperium proposals would result in oil moving over Washington's ocean waters in unprecedented volumes. Westway proposes four oil storage tanks with the capacity to store a total of 800,000 barrels or 33,600,000 gallons of crude oil. AR at 124 (Westway MDNS at 2). Westway would receive 9,600,000 barrels of oil per year by rail; every three days a 120-car train would arrive, unload crude oil, and depart the terminal. *Id.* After unloading the crude into storage tanks, Westway would transfer the oil to ships and barges, resulting in 120 ship/barge transits through Grays Harbor and Washington's open ocean per year, half of which would carry oil. *Id.* Imperium's proposal would add up to nine storage tanks, each with a capacity of 80,000 barrels for a project total storage capacity of up to 720,000 barrels (30,240,000 gallons). AR at 228 (Imperium MDNS at 2). Crude oil and other liquids would arrive at Imperium's facility by rail and then would be pumped into the storage

⁹ See Clifford Krauss and Trip Gabriel, *As New Shipping Rules Are Studied, Another Oil Train Derails*, N.Y. Times, Apr. 30, 2014, *available at* http://goo.gl/aPpSZZ.

tanks and shipped out by barge or ship, for a total increase of 400 vessel entry and departure transits each year. *Id*.

C. The Quinault Indian Nation and Grays Harbor

The Quinault have lived near and depended on Grays Harbor for generations. They have been called the Canoe people because of the importance of the ocean, bays, estuaries, and rivers to every aspect of tribal life. *See generally* Jacqueline M. Strom, Land of the Quinault (1990). Quinault fishermen catch salmon, sturgeon, steelhead, halibut, cod, crab, oysters, razor clams, and many other species in Grays Harbor.

The Quinault Indian Nation is a signatory to the Treaty of Olympia (1856) in which it reserved a right to take fish at its "usual and accustomed fishing grounds and stations" and the privilege of gathering, among other rights, in exchange for ceding lands it historically roamed freely. Treaty rights are not granted to tribes, but rather are "grants of rights from them—a reservation of those not granted." *U.S. v. Winans*, 198 U.S. 371, 380-81 (1905). In a landmark court case known as the "Boldt decision," a federal court confirmed that Indian tribes have a right to half the harvestable fish in state waters and established the tribes as co-managers of the fisheries resource with the State of Washington. *United States v. Washington*, 384 F. Supp. 312 (W.D. Wash. 1974). The Boldt decision affirmed that the Quinault usual and accustomed fishing areas include

"Grays Harbor and those streams which empty into Grays Harbor." *Id.* at 374. Tribal members have always lived and worked, and continue to live and work, in the Grays Harbor area.

The Chehalis and the Humptulips Rivers and the Grays Harbor estuary provide the freshwater and marine habitat that supports chinook, chum, and coho salmon and steelhead of critical importance to the Quinault Nation's Treaty-protected terminal river fisheries within Grays Harbor. Grays Harbor nourishes other species of fish important to the Nation's Treaty-protected fisheries such as White Sturgeon and Dungeness Crab, an economically vital fishery on the Washington coast.

Quinault weavers have gathered materials from the Grays Harbor area for many generations. Sweetgrass, cattail, and other grasses and willow gathered from the Bowerman Basin are used by the Quinault as a material in the traditional weaving of baskets and mats and for ceremonial purposes. Weaving is as integral to contemporary Quinault culture as it was in the past. Bowerman Basin, located in Grays Harbor to the north of the proposed Westway and Imperium projects, is one of the two major areas remaining in Washington with large sweetgrass populations.

Sweetgrass is a key component, and participant, in the highly complex estuarine ecosystem processes. Its loss due to a potential oil spill would significantly harm juvenile salmonid and bird habitats, and estuary

function, which would have huge negative implications for the Quinault.

Endangered Species Act ("ESA") protected species such as bull trout, green sturgeon, and Pacific eulachon live in Grays Harbor estuary.

AR at 2390 (Shorelines Hearings Board Order on Summary Judgment (As Amended on Reconsideration) at 12) ("SHB Order"). Federal and state-protected birds such as marbled murrelets, brown pelicans, western snowy plovers, and streaked horn lark are also found in Grays Harbor. *Id.* Grays Harbor National Wildlife Refuge, used by dozens of species of shorebirds, is three miles from the proposed project sites. *Id.* Additionally, protected marine mammals, such as the southern resident killer whale, gray whale, humpback whale, sperm whale, and stellar sea lion, are found in Grays Harbor. *Id.*

D. Friends of Grays Harbor *et al.*

Friends of Grays Harbor, Grays Harbor Audubon Society, the Sierra Club, and Citizens for a Clean Harbor are non-profit organizations concerned about the environmental impacts of the proposed crude-by-rail terminals.

Friends of Grays Harbor is a broad-based, volunteer, tax-exempt citizens' group comprised of crabbers, fishers, oyster growers and concerned citizens. Its mission is to foster and promote the economic, biological, and social uniqueness of a healthy Grays Harbor estuary,

protecting the natural environment and human health in Grays Harbor and vicinity through science, advocacy, law, activism, and empowerment.

Grays Harbor Audubon Society is a chapter of the National Audubon Society. Grays Harbor Audubon Society is non-profit organization that provides environmental education, wildlife habitat protection, and bird- and nature-related activities in Grays Harbor. Along with the City of Hoquiam and the Grays Harbor Wildlife Refuge, it organizes the annual Grays Harbor Shorebird Festival. The Festival is timed to coincide with the annual migration of hundreds of thousands of shorebirds pausing to rest and feed in the Grays Harbor estuary on their way to nesting grounds in the Arctic. The Grays Harbor Audubon Habitat Protection Program has acquired or made conservation easement agreements for over 3,050 acres of habitat in Grays Harbor, Pacific, and Jefferson counties.

Sierra Club is a national non-profit organization of over one million members and supporters dedicated to exploring, enjoying, and protecting the wild places of the earth; practicing and promoting responsible use of the earth's ecosystems and resources; educating and enlisting humanity to protect and restore the quality of the natural and human environment; and using all lawful means to carry out these objectives. Sierra Club has more than 20,000 members in the State of

Washington who want to ensure that Washington's treasured coastline and the regions in which oil could be transported by rail are protected into the future.

Citizens for a Clean Harbor is a grassroots organization of citizens concerned about the actions of the Port of Grays Harbor and how those actions affect water quality, water quantity, and health of the estuary, rivers, and streams upon which they depend.

II. PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On March 14, 2013, the City of Hoquiam and the Washington
Department of Ecology ("Ecology") issued a mitigated determination of
non-significance ("MDNS") for Westway's oil terminal proposal,
exempting the proposal from full environmental and public health review
under SEPA. On April 26, 2013, Hoquiam issued Westway a Substantial
Shoreline Development Permit. *See* AR at 123-33 (Westway MDNS);
AR at 59-68 (Westway SSDP). Hoquiam and Ecology issued a similar
threshold determination for Imperium on May 2, 2013; on June 14, 2013,
Hoquiam issued a Substantial Shoreline Development Permit to Imperium. *See* AR at 227-39 (Imperium MDNS); AR at 216-26 (Imperium SSDP).

Neither the companies nor the regulatory authorities evaluated the
proposals under ORMA, nor did either company demonstrate financial
responsibility under RCW 88.40.025.

Quinault Indian Nation and FOGH appealed the Westway and Imperium MDNSs and shorelines permits to the Washington Shorelines Hearings Board, advancing three major claims in their motions for summary judgment: (1) that ORMA applies to these proposals because transporting crude oil over open water to vessels and shipping crude oil by vessel is an "ocean use" and "transportation use" under ORMA and its implementing regulations; (2) that Westway and Imperium were required to demonstrate financial responsibility for oil spill clean-up during the environmental review and before issuance of a shorelines permit; and (3) that under the State Environmental Policy Act and the Shorelines Management Act, Ecology and Hoquiam failed to consider the cumulative effects of a third crude oil shipping terminal proposed in Grays Harbor and failed to fully consider the cumulative effects of the two terminals at issue, particularly given the impact of greatly increased rail and vessel traffic in and out of Grays Harbor.

On November 12, 2013, the Board granted in part Quinault and FOGH's summary judgment motions on the SEPA claims, finding that Ecology and Hoquiam failed to fully review and analyze the harmful effects of crude-by-rail proposals in Grays Harbor because they failed to review the impacts of a third nearby terminal proposed by US Development. AR at 2394-2404 (SHB Order at 16-26). The Board went

on to find that even the limited cumulative impacts analysis done for the Westway and Imperium projects was inadequate because it did not review rail and vessel traffic impacts before issuing the permits. AR at 2395-2411 (SHB Order at 26-33). The Board also found "troubling questions of the adequacy of the analysis done regarding the potential for individual and cumulative impacts from oil spills, seismic events, greenhouse gas emissions, and impacts to cultural resources." AR at 2412 (SHB Order at 34). The Board reversed and remanded the Westway and Imperium MDNSs and shoreline permits. *Id.* at 2420-21 (SHB Order at 42-43).

In its ruling, however, the Board concluded that ORMA was limited to "facilities directly engaged in resource exploration and extraction," rejecting the argument that ORMA applies to these projects. *Id.* at 2417-20 (SHB Order at 39-42). The Board decided that ocean shipment of crude oil was not an "ocean use" or "transportation use" under ORMA because the proposals would not extract crude from Washington waters or transport oil drilled from beneath the ocean. *Id.* at 2418-19 (SHB Order at 40-41).

The Board also concluded that Westway and Imperium did not need to comply with RCW 88.40.025's financial responsibility requirements as part of the SEPA or shoreline permit process. *Id.* at 2416 (SHB Order at 38-39). The Board found that Westway and Imperium may

delay providing financial assurances until an oil spill prevention plan is required, even though the MDNS explicitly relies on compliance with the spill prevention plan and RCW 80.40.025. AR at 2416-17 (SHB Order at 38-39).

Since that time, Westway and Imperium have agreed to the completion of full environmental and public health review for their projects. Hoquiam and Ecology issued Determinations of Significance for those proposals on April 4, 2014. Westway Determination of Significance, available at http://www.ecy.wa.gov/geographic/graysharbor/westwayterminal.html; Imperium Determination of Significance, available at http://www.ecy.wa.gov/geographic/graysharbor/imperiumterminal.html. Hoquiam and Ecology accepted scoping comments on the Westway and Imperium proposals through May 27, 2014, receiving approximately 22,253 comments. See Amelia Dickson, 22,253 comments made on Imperium and Westway EIS scoping, The Daily World, June 17, 2014, available at http://goo.gl/w5jUmR.

On March 27, 2014, US Development Group—the proponent of a third crude-by-rail proposal in Grays Harbor—submitted its long-expected application to Hoquiam for a Shoreline Substantial Development permit ("SSDP"); US Development submitted a State Environmental Policy Act Checklist on April 7, 2014. US Development SSDP Application;

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