No. 45887-0-II

COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTO DIVISION II

QUINAULT INDIAN NATION, FRIENDS OF GRAYS HARBOR, SIERRA CLUB, GRAYS HARBOR AUDUBON and CITIZENS FOR A CLEAN HARBOR.

Petitioners,

VS.

CITY OF HOQUIAM; STATE OF WASHINGTON, DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY; and WESTWAY TERMINAL COMPANY LLC.

Respondents.

and

IMPERIUM TERMINAL SERVICES, LLC, Respondent/Cross-Petitioner,

SHORELINES HEARINGS BOARD, Respondent.

RESPONSE BRIEF OF WESTWAY TERMINAL COMPANY LLC

Svend A. Brandt-Erichsen Jeff B. Kray Meline G. MacCurdy Marten Law PLLC 1191 Second Avenue, Suite 2200 Seattle, WA 98101

Attorneys for Westway Terminal Services, LLC

ORIGINAL

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

ARGUMENT

I. The Ocean Resources Management Act Does Not Apply to Onshore Facilities That Do Not Involve Resource Extraction in Washington's Coastal Waters

The petitioners have not pointed to any circumstance in the twentyfive years since the legislature enacted ORMA where the statute has been applied to an onshore facility that has no connection to resource extraction in Washington's coastal waters. The lack of precedent for the petitioners' novel interpretation of ORMA is predictable given that the legislature did not intend the statute to apply to such facilities and the agencies and local governments responsible for implementing the statute have never interpreted ORMA in the manner the petitioners have suggested.

When ORMA was enacted in 1989, the federal government was in the planning stages for a 1992 lease-sale that would have authorized oil and gas exploration in waters off Washington's coast.² ORMA embodies a two-part legislative response that sought to limit and impose restrictions on resource extraction within Washington's "coastal waters." ORMA defines "coastal waters" as including the three-mile area under Washington jurisdiction and the adjacent 197-miles of the exclusive economic zone under federal jurisdiction.³

Within the three-mile zone of Washington's coastal waters that are under the state's jurisdiction, the legislature imposed an outright moratorium on leases for oil and gas exploration, development, or production.⁴

² Quinault Indian Nation and Friends of Grays Harbor *et al* Appendix ("App'x") 67.

³ RCW 43.143.020(2) (defining "coastal waters" as "the waters of the Pacific Ocean seaward from Cape Flattery south to Cape Disappointment, from mean high tide seaward two hundred miles"); *see also* RCW 43.143.005(4) (explaining federal jurisdiction over exclusive economic zone from three miles seaward).

⁴ RCW 43.143.010(2).

As ORMA explains, however, the legislature was equally concerned with activities in the adjacent federal waters (such as the planned oil and gas lease-sale) due to the potential for activities in those waters to impact Washington's waters and shorelines. "Since protection, conservation, and development of the natural resources in the exclusive economic zone directly affect Washington's economy and environment, the state has an inherent interest in how these resources are managed." The legislature also stated that insufficient information was "available to adequately assess the potential adverse effects of oil and gas exploration and production off Washington's coast."

ORMA's review criteria, central to the petitioners' appeal, stem from the legislature's inability to directly regulate or prohibit activities in the vast majority of Washington's coastal waters that are outside the state's jurisdiction. These provisions do not, contrary to the petitioners' assertion, reflect a legislative intent to reach beyond resource extraction in Washington's coastal waters, 7 nor is there any "inconsistency" with including these criteria in tandem with the moratorium on extraction in the portions of Washington's coastal waters over which the state has

⁵ RCW 43.143.005(4).

⁶ App'x-59.

In theory, the criteria also could be applied to renewable resource uses at some future date, but the legislature makes clear that uses involving renewable resources were neither the focus of the statute nor intended to be regulated under the statute at that time. RCW 43.143.010(5). Thus, while notionally applicable to all on-water resource uses, in fact ORMA only applies to nonrenewable resource extraction.

jurisdiction.⁸ Rather, the review criteria furthered the legislature's goal of influencing resource exploration in all of Washington's coastal waters, including the waters under federal jurisdiction. This motivation is clear in the legislative history, where the legislature stated that ORMA was intended to guide the federal decision-making process regarding the management, conservation, use, and development of resources in coastal waters that are under federal jurisdiction. 10

The legislature's calculated effort to impose restrictions on resource extraction in the portion of Washington's coastal waters under federal control is described clearly in the legislature's explanation of the mechanism through which the legislature intended ORMA to assert this influence. The goal was to create a set of review criteria adopted by local governments that, by virtue of the Coastal Zone Management Act ("CZMA"), would bind the federal government's exploration activities in the exclusive economic zone. The legislative history explains that the CZMA "directs that federal agencies conduct and support activities directly affecting the coastal zone in a manner which is, to the maximum extent practicable, consistent with approved state management programs." 12 Applicants for federal licenses "to conduct an activity

⁸ Sec Petitioner's Op. Brief at 29.

⁹ See App'x-65 (explaining that few regulations, guidelines, or policies governed the use or development of Washington State's coastal resources).

¹⁰ App'x-65-68.

¹¹ App'x-67-68.

¹² App'x-67; see also 16 U.S.C. § 1456(e)(1)(A).

affecting land or water uses in the coastal zone of a state must provide a state approved certification of consistency with that state's management program," even where such plans are for exploration, development, or production from areas in the exclusive economic zone. As a result, the legislature concluded, "any exploration, development, or production activities conducted or permitted by [the Mineral Management Service ("MMS")] must be consistent with" ORMA.

To incorporate the purpose of ORMA into the state's management plans, the legislature directed Ecology to develop "ocean use guidelines and policies to be used" in reviewing and amending local governments' shoreline master programs consistent with the intent of ORMA and required local governments to adopt these guidelines. The net result was a comprehensive scheme of local shoreline master programs that were

¹³ App'x-67; see also 16 U.S.C. § 1456(c)(3)(A) (providing that "any applicant for a required Federal license or permit to conduct an activity, in or outside of the coastal zone, affecting any land or water use or natural resource of the coastal zone of that state shall provide in the application to the licensing or permitting agency a certification that the proposed activity complies with the enforceable policies of the state's approved program and that such activity will be conducted in a manner consistent with the program").

¹⁴ App`x-67.

¹⁵ App'x-62 (codified in RCW 90.58.195, implementing shoreline master plan review); *see also* App'x-68 (stating that local governments were directed to review and amend their shoreline master programs to ensure consistency with ORMA and that Ecology was to "consult with affected state agencies, local governments, Indian Tribes, and the public prior to responding to federal coastal zone management consistency certifications," whereby Ecology would ensure that ORMA's policies would be met).

imbued with the dictates of ORMA and that would collectively impose restrictions on exploration within the exclusive economic zone adjacent to these local governments.

The newspaper articles that the petitioners cite, published contemporaneously with the passage of ORMA, highlight the purpose of the statute and the mechanism through which it was intended to accomplish that purpose. When the bill briefly stalled in the legislature, the official who was at the time advising Washington's then-governor regarding offshore drilling stated that Washington State "urgently need[ed] some kind of oil policy if it [was] to succeed in preventing the federal Interior Department from leasing sites off the Washington coastline for oil exploration." When the bill was revived ten days later, the Seattle Times described ORMA as "a bill designed to protect state waters from the hazards of oil drilling and other development" and stated that then-Governor Booth Gardner and other supporters "claim[ed] the coastal development policy that would be established under the bill [was] essential if the state hope d to block the Bush administration from leasing offshore areas for drilling." The newspaper article also stated that ORMA would revise the Shoreline Management Act ("SMA") "so that it would regulate activities within state waters" and require that lessees "comply with stringent state requirements" if the federal government were

¹⁶ App'x-76. ¹⁷ App'x-78.

to lease offshore areas. 18

It is within this context that Ecology developed its regulations implementing the scope of activities that are subject to ORMA and, as a result, integrated into local governments' shoreline management plans. Ecology's awareness of the legislature's purpose in passing ORMA led to the clear definition of "ocean uses" as directly connected to resource extraction in Washington's coastal waters. Ecology defined "ocean uses" as:

[A]ctivities or developments involving renewable and/or nonrenewable resources that occur on Washington's coastal waters and includes their associated off shore, near shore, inland marine, shoreland, and upland facilities and the supply, service, and distribution activities, such as crew ships, circulating to and between the activities and developments. Ocean uses involving nonrenewable resources include such activities as extraction of oil, gas and minerals, energy production, disposal of waste products, and salvage.²⁰

The petitioners have not explained how the projects at issue in this appeal fall within this definition, where they will not involve the extraction of crude oil or resources from Washington's coastal waters. While the projects mark a transition point between modes of transporting crude oil, the oil itself is extracted in the heart of the continent, far from Washington's coastal waters. Since the projects have no connection to any extractive "activity or development" on Washington's coastal waters.

 $^{^{18}}$ L1

¹⁹ See App*x-62; RCW 90.58.195; WAC 173-26-360(1).

²⁰ WAC 173-26-360(3).

the petitioners would have to demonstrate that ORMA applies to the mere transport of a commodity (crude oil), regardless of its point of origin. This they simply cannot do.

Finally, the petitioners fail to explain how their expansive interpretation of ORMA fits within the web of environmental review provisions under the SMA and SEPA that already provide the type of review and analysis of onshore facilities that the petitioners would impose under ORMA. The SMA is designed to evaluate development of shorelines by ensuring that such development controls pollution and prevents damage to the natural environment and has consistently been applied to evaluating land use decisions involving onshore facilities.²¹ Likewise, SEPA already ensures that probable significant, adverse impacts will be evaluated and mitigated before a project moves forward.²² The petitioners have provided no explanation for why the legislature would have deemed the SMA and SEPA insufficient to evaluate the potential impacts from on-shore facilities, particularly since the legislative history makes it clear the legislature intended ORMA to bolster the State's influence over offshore facilities.²³

²¹ See RCW 90.58.020. ²² See RCW 43.21C.031. ²³ See App²x-65-68.

SEPA Does Not Require Premature Evaluation of Prospective П. Compliance with Washington's Financial Responsibility Requirements for Onshore Facilities

The petitioners' assertion that SEPA requires an evaluation of an applicant's ability to comply with financial responsibility requirements under the state oil spill regulations is without legal foundation and conflicts with SEPA's dictate that environmental review take place at the earliest possible stage in the regulatory review process so that it can guide later decision-making.²⁴ The petitioners' view that individual elements of the subsequent regulatory review should be accelerated and completed during SEPA review is entirely antithetical to SEPA's intent. Moreover. as the Board properly held, SEPA decision-makers are entitled to condition their SEPA review on compliance with a variety of complex environmental laws when such compliance becomes ripe. 25 Petitioners have presented no compelling argument for why this Court should single out financial responsibility from among the many forthcoming permits and regulatory reviews that will be necessary before the proposed projects go forward and require that this one regulatory requirement be satisfied during the initial environmental review.

One of SEPA's over-arching goals is that environmental review take place at the earliest stage possible, before significant resources are expended and commitment toward completion of the project becomes

²⁴ See WAC 197-11-055(1). ²⁵ See AR at 2413 (SHB Order at 35).

intractable ²⁶ SEPA regulations are replete with this directive, requiring that environmental review take place "at the earliest possible time to ensure that planning and decisions reflect environmental values," that lead agencies prepare threshold determinations "at the earliest possible point in the planning and decision-making process, when the principal features of a proposal and its environmental impacts can be reasonably identified." and that lead agencies ensure that review of private proposals take place "at the conceptual stage rather than the final detailed design stage." Case law acknowledges that meeting these directives will necessarily involve conducting a SEPA review in the absence of future agency approvals. The petitioners' assertion that SEPA nonetheless requires premature evaluation of one aspect of what will be a comprehensive oil spill contingency plan would undermine these fundamental goals of SEPA.

Ecology's financial responsibility requirements are embedded in the agency's comprehensive network of oil spill contingency plan requirements addressing what criteria a permit applicant must meet before

²⁶ See, e.g., WAC 197-11-055.

²⁷ WAC 197-11-055(1).

²⁸ WAC 197-11-055(2).

²⁹ WAC 197-11-055(4).

³⁰ See, e.g., Thornton Creek Legal Defense Fund v. City of Seattle, 113 Wn App. 34, 53 (2002) (analyzing timing of environmental review in the context of Seattle Municipal Code and the application to general development plan for mall expansion, rejecting argument that review was premature before definite proposal or application had been completed).

it is authorized to receive an operating permit.³¹ In addition to the financial responsibility requirements, these regulations include criteria associated with oil spill plans, manuals, training, and reports that will be put in place to prevent and respond to oil spills.³² Ecology evaluates facility submittals under those regulatory requirements, and its approval of a complete oil spill contingency plan is required before a project can begin operations.⁵³ The petitioners have not explained why conducting this analysis later, at the proper time in the regulatory review process, will result in irrevocable environmental harm.³⁴

Completion of appropriate, Ecology-approved oil spill contingency plans is only one of many environmental permitting and review stages that Westway and Imperium will need to meet before facility operations can begin. Ecology and the City included a list of the reviews and approvals that will be necessary before the projects can move forward and clearly stated that their SEPA review presumed that compliance with these

³¹ See WAC 173-180-630(7).

³² See WAC 173-180-630.

 $^{^{33}}$ 1d

The central theme to the petitioners' appeal is to focus on impacts within the context of the oil transportation system in the crude-by-rail and broader resource extraction industries. See, e.g., Petitioners Op. Brief at 46-48 (comparing the Gulf Oil Spill and a rail accident). The SEPA review currently being conducted for these projects takes account of such indirect impacts, as the statute requires. WAC 197-11-060(4). However, these indirect impacts are irrelevant to Westway and Imperium's financial responsibility requirements, which relate only to the potential for spills from their oil terminals. See RCW 88.40.025. The petitioners' attempt to graft SEPA's broad scope onto independent underlying regulatory requirements is without precedent or legal basis.

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